
Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Regular Monthly Meeting 
Tuesday, August 1, 2023, 6:00pm 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order – Chair Bob Pace      Pg #
2. Approval of the Agenda
3. Approval of the Minutes ............................................................................ 3

• July 6, 2023 regular meeting of the Board
4. Maple Trace Initial Zoning Upon Annexation .............................................. 5
5. Update of Comprehensive Land Use Plan Priorities ................................... 24

• Planning Board Consensus on Priorities of the CLUP
• Any Additions or Subtractions to Priorities

6. Short Term Rentals ...................................................................................... 30
• Presentation of Information Gained from other Jurisdictions
• Additional Parties to be Included in the Study of Possible Regulation of Short Term 

Rentals
7. Any Other Business ....................................................................................... 41

• Joint Meeting of the Planning Board and Town Council
8. Adjournment

1



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Tuesday, August 1, 2023 

Minutes 

Planning Director 

Minutes from the July 6, 2023 Meeting of the Board 

Description: 

Attached you will find proposed minutes from the July 6, 2023 meeting of the Board 

Action Requested: 

Staff is requesting that the Planning Board adopt the aforementioned minutes as 
presented or amended by motion of the Board. 

2



Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Regular Monthly Meeting 
Thursday, July 6, 2023, 6:00pm 

Minutes 

The Planning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly meeting 
at 6:00 pm on Thursday July 6, 2023, within Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Chair Bob Pace, Board Members Jane Kelley, Donna Mann Belt and Alternate 
Member, Stephanie Pupkiewicz-Busch. Town Council Liaison Michelle Wood, Town Attorney 
Jennifer Jackson, Planning Director James Eller and Town Clerk Tamara Mercer. 

Call to Order – Chair Bob Pace called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Chairman Pace appointed the Town Clerk as Secretary to the Planning Board without objection. 
Chairman Pace recognized alternate member, Stephanie Pupkeiwicz-Busch as a voting 
member without objection.  

2. Adopt the Agenda

With no objections Chairman Pace adopted the agenda by consent.

3. Planning Board regular meeting minutes June 6, 2023

Jane Kelley moved to approve the June 6, 2023, meeting minutes as presented and the motion 
carried 4-0 unanimously. 

4. Discussion Related to the Potential Implementation of a Conservation Design Concept

Potential conservation design concepts have been drawn from the NC Forestry Service 
addressing the urban conservation design ordinance and was presented by Planning Director, 
James Eller.  

Mr. Eller noted that ‘conservation designs’ are incentives to improve conservation and he 
proposed that they be applicable to development for major subdivisions as defined in the code. 
As discussed in the previous meeting, Staff is presenting an incentive program. If the Board 
wishes to propose requirements for conservation measures instead, that is at the discretion of 
the Board. Mr. Eller and Attorney Jackson answered questions and discussed how incentive 
based conservation measures might work in a variety of situations. 

Discussion included minimum lot acreage requirements, infrastructure, and public utilities, rural 
versus urban definitions, minor and major developments, tree inventory, the watershed in cluster 
developments and environmentally sensitive areas. Mr. Eller noted that four lots or less, with 
infrastructure in place, constitutes a minor subdivision. A major subdivision has five or more lots 
or where infrastructure does not exist and would have to be installed.  

Chairman Pace noted that Ms. Kelley and the other members were concerned with tree 
conservation, so they were not inclined to implement an incentive program, but rather require 
conservation measures. In light of the CLUP language which states “Consider regulations that 
encourage open space or greenway dedication, conservation measures,” Attorney Jackson 

3



recommended that Town Council guidance on this issue be sought. It was the Planning Board 
consensus not to pursue an incentive approach to conservation but instead focus on an 
approach that requires conservation measures for all residential development, and Staff will 
consult the Town Council for further guidance.  

5. Short Term Rentals

Mr. Eller reviewed the options and next steps as provided by Staff and the Land of Sky Regional 
Council report on STRs. A facilitator cost was discussed, and Councilmember Wood noted she 
can provide Brevard’s research as they had a large task force in the process of implementing 
regulations. Attorney Jackson provided the task force/stakeholders list and others that might 
have relevant information, including the following: WBA, short term rental property owners, law 
enforcement which includes law enforcement data, Public Works and Planning Staff, Buncombe 
County Tourism Development Authority, who may be able to provide data on the occupancy tax 
dollars collected, realtors, citizens in general, and regional jurisdictions. 

Chairman Pace suggested adding special meetings on STRs and Attorney Jackson provided 
options for meeting and gathering public input with the stakeholders. She added that Staff will 
contact the regional jurisdictions for information and provide that data to the Board at a 
subsequent meeting. 

Councilmember Wood wanted to include the City of Brevard discussion points and data and 
determine how to implement enforcement and the Board wished to include the jurisdictions of 
Ashville, Woodfin, Hot Springs, and Buncombe County. Attorney Jackson stated Staff will send 
the discussion points which will include: general description and definitions of short-term rentals, 
STR statuses, legal challenges, regulations that worked well, and what procedures were 
changed, and enforcement of short-term rentals. We will invite them to respond in writing and/or 
attend in person or remotely at the August 1st Planning Board meeting. 

6. Any Other Business

Mr. Eller provided an update on Various Development Projects, specifically the Buncombe 
County Board approval of a Conditional District multi-tenant commercial mixed use 
development.   

Attorney Jackson provided the Board with a priority project list and requested members to rank 
and/ or include priority projects of their own. The list and rankings will provide guidance and 
input for the next Planning Board meeting. The recommendations from the Planning Board 
would then go before Town Council.  

7. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairman Pace adjourned the meeting at 7:51 p.m. without 
objection.  

______________________________ 

Tamara Mercer, Town Clerk 

4



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, August 1, 2022

Subject: Maple Trace – Initial Zoning Upon Annexation

Presenter: Planning Director, Town Attorney

Attachments: Resolution Concerning Voluntary Annexation Petition for 
Maple Trace, GIS Image, Maple Trace Subdivision Preliminary 
Plat and Final Plats for Phases 1-4, Future Land Use Map, 
Resolution Regarding Development in Identified Growth Areas

Description:

The Maple Trace Homeowners’ Association, Inc., and property owners within the Maple 
Trace Subdivision have submitted a voluntary annexation petition that encompasses all of 
the subdivision lots and common space within the existing subdivision known as Maple 
Trace. The area is approximately 65 acres and is located near the intersection of Reems 
Creek Road and Parker Cove Road on private subdivisions roads named Water Leaf Drive, 
Wild Ginger Court, Checkerberry Court, Bell Lily Drive, and Rosebud Orchid Way. 
Construction of single-family homes has been completed on just about all lots and vested 
rights are claimed so that the subdivision can be completed as originally planned and
permitted.

While vested rights are being claimed, staff has offered the opinion that the Town’s R-2 
zoning district is the most appropriate for the properties in question and the property 
owners are agreeable with this assessment.

Action Requested:

The Board is being asked to consider the initial zoning of the properties upon annexation
and offer a recommendation to Town Council on the proposal’s consistency with the 
comprehensive land use plan and reasonableness of the proposed zoning amendment. 

5



 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION CONCERNING VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION PETITION 

FOR MAPLE TRACE SUBDIVISION 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of the entirety of Maple Trace 
Subdivision has been received by the Town of Weaverville and the Weaverville Town 
Council deems it advisable to proceed in response to this request for annexation; and 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-58.2 provides that the sufficiency of a non-
contiguous annexation petition shall be investigated by the Town Clerk before further 
annexation proceedings may take place; and 

WHEREAS, a Planning Board review and recommendation on the initial zoning of 
the areas to be annexed is required prior to Town Council taking any action to amend the 
zoning map should these properties be annexed, although vested rights are claimed for all 
development; and 

WHEREAS, staff analysis on the effect that this annexation will have on the 
provision of Town services is advisable prior to Town Council taking any action on the 
annexation petition; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville as follows: 

1.

2.

3.

4.

The Town Clerk, with the assistance of the Town Attorney, is hereby directed to
investigate the sufficiency of the voluntary annexation petition and to certify to
Town Council the result of her investigation.

The Planning Director is directed to place the properties that are the subject of the
annexation petition on the Planning Board’s agenda for review and
recommendation as to the most appropriate zoning district for an initial Town
zoning of these properties, that consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land
Use Plan be part of that review, and that a Planning Board recommendation be
submitted to Town Council as soon as practical, but in no event later than any public
hearing that may subsequently be held on this matter.

The Town staff is directed to provide a report analyzing the effect that this
annexation might have on the provision of Town services and any additional
resources that will be needed to extend Town services to these properties should
they be annexed.

The Public Works Director is directed to develop a testing and inspection program,
to be performed by or on behalf of the petitioners and at petitioners’ expense, for
evaluation of the private street construction standards, condition of the streets and
related stormwater system on all of the streets that are proposed for acceptance
into the Town’s public street system. The Public Works Director is authorized to
work with the petitioners and provide guidance concerning the testing and
inspection and to advise the petitioners on any remedial measures that will be

6



recommended based on the Public Works Director’s review of the testing results. 
The Public Works Director is further directed to provide such reporting to Town 
Council as necessary to keep them informed of the testing results, remedial work 
undertaken and/or completed, and his final recommendation concerning 
acceptance of the streets into the Town’s public street system.    

5. It is acknowledged that this voluntary annexation petition covers approximately 65
acres and approximately 1.4 miles of streets, and involves a large number of
petitioners (representing approximately 135 lots, and 8 common areas), and that it
will take staff time to provide the analysis, certifications, and recommendations
required by this resolution. Staff is directed to provide an update at its November
2023 regular meeting, if not before.

THIS the __ ___ day of July, 2023

_________________________________________________________ 
PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

_________________________________________________________ 
TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

7



Ju
ly

 1
1,

 2
02

3
0

0.
15

0.
3

0.
07

5
m

i

1:
9,

02
8

8



9



10



11



12



13



I2
6

M
A

IN

AIKEN

DULA SPRINGS

US
25

70

REEMS CREEK

I2
6

NEW
STOCK

M
E

R
R

IM
O

N

MONTICELLO

LONGS CHAPEL
ELLER

COVE

OLD MARSHALL

R
IC

E

W
EAVERVILLE

GOLDVIEW

CLARKS CHAPEL

P
E

G
G

M
U

N
D

Y
C

O
V

E

D
O

G
W

O
O

D

CHURCH

AYERS

W
OODY STONEY KNOB

H
IL

LC
R

E
S

T

WEAVER

R
IVER

SID
E

BLEVINSH
E

R
R

O
N

C
O

V
E

H
A

M
B

U
R

G
M

O
U

N
TA

INSALEM

UNIO
N C

HAPEL

BRITTEN COVE

O
LL

IE
W

E
AV

E
R

FAR
IDA

IN
D

IA
N

H
IG

H
LA

N
D

WOOTEN COVE

D
U

LA

P
U

G

P
IN

K
F

O
X

C
O

V
E

LAKESHORE

M
AR

TIN
FO

R
D

B
U

N
C

O
M

B
E

S
C

H
O

O
L

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

Y
O

U
N

G

A
LP

IN
E

D
O

AN

PA
R

K
E

R

YO
ST

E
A

S
T

LAC
KEY

W
INDAGO

AN
D

ER
S

O
N

UPPER HERRON COVE

WILEY

V
A

N
N

A

GREENRIDGE

BROWN

H
AV

E
N

ALEXANDER

P
IN

E
M

O
U

N
T

PA
R

K
E

R
C

O
V

E

PINE

H
IG

H
BL

UF
F

B
O

Y
D

S
C

H
A

P
E

L R
IC

E
C

O
V

E

SPIC
EW

O
O

D

HIDDEN FALLS

NOLA

S
A

G
E

T
E

A
B

E
R

R
Y

GILL

A
LS

TERRACE

G
E

N
TI

A
N

PATTI

P
E

N
N

Y

CENTRAL

P
IC

K
E

N
S

LO
F

T
IN

LAKEWAY

BANNISTER

H
AM

B
U

R
G

FOX CHASE

E
LL

E
R

H
O

LL
O

W

WEST

N
EW

C
O

VEN
AN

T

S
ILV

E
R

F
IR

MORRIS

A
LC

AT
N

IE

PHILLY

VENTOSO RIDGE

SUMMERSIDE

TERRI

NICHOLS HILL

S
H

U
FO

R
D

RAY

BANKS TOWN

CRITTER

B
R

IG
M

A
N

R
ICE

H
ILL

HALL

S
H

A
N

N
A

ROBIN

JO
S

IE

LONGSTREET

PLEASANT HILL

C
A

R
D

E
N

LO
F

T
Y

PENLEY PARK

NADER

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

CAM
SY

N

LE
IS

U
R

E

KN
O

LL
R

ID
G

E

BLU
FF

C
O

VE

RIDGEWAY

TIP
TON

GARRISON

FONTANA

S
H

E
IL

A

DOROTHY LILLE

HANNAH

SH
EL

W
O

O
D

NORTHCREST

SC
EN

IC
VIEW

R
E

D
M

A
P

LE

W
E

S
T

V
IE

W

M
AT

TI
E

STAN
LEY

HO
LLO

W

P
R

E
S

T
O

N

LO
W

R
Y

B
A

LC
R

A
N

K

H
O

W
A

R
D

TR
IN

IT
Y

H
IL

LS

RED COLE

BR
AN

D
O

N

I26

I2
6

U
S

25
70

I26

N
E

W
S

TO
C

K

I26

G
O

LD
V

IE
W

I2
6

REEMS CREEK

HH

OOOWWN

PINNE

RRRRRAAAALLLL

EEESSSSSTTTT

HH

OO

E

TRRR

EEST

RRRRR
RRRR

IM
O

N

CCCCHHHHUUUURR

SAALLEMM

H
IG

HH
LA

N
DD

AAKKESHORREE

YYYOOO
SST

BB

LL

CCCCEEN

O
F

T
IN

W

BANNNKKS TTOWN

B

MMM
AATTTTAAAA

TTII
EE

R
A

N
KK

AAKK

RRR

CHUURR

BBB

AALLLEXAN

ENN

LO

WWW

WN

B

R
A

N
KK

KEN

M

GGAA
RREEEMM

KEN

M

GAA

EEEMM

RRR

LE
RRR

I2
6

WW
EEEEEEEAAAVVAAA

EERRRVVVV B
O

Y
D

S
C

H
A

P
EA

B
E

R
RR

YY

KKNN
OO

LLLLL
RRR

IID
G

WWWW
OO

O
D LLOOOO

WWWW
RR

Y

I2
6

VI

P
EAA

G
E

WWW

RR
Y

WEAVA EEREEXANDER

EAVA EEREEXANDER

MM
A

INN

HH
AAM

B
U

CCRITTER

LLOONGSTREET
CC

HH
E

SSSS
TT

NN
UUUU

TT

LEE

R

PU

C

EET
EE

BBB
RRRREEDD

BBB
RRRR DD

DDDD
O

GG
WW

O
OO

DD

HH
IL

LLCC
R

E
S

T

M
OO

UU
NN

TATT
IN

UNNNIO
N CC

HAPEL

PP
UU

PPPPP
IIIINN

K
F

O
X

C

E
A

HH
IG

H
BL

UF
F

CC
K

E
N

S

LLAAAKEWWAAAAWWW YAA

R
GG

HILL

SS
HH

U
FOO

R
D

RRAAAYYYYYYAAAASS
HH

CCC
AAA

RR
DD

EE
NN

PEENLEY PPPPAAAAARKK

CAM
SY

N

DOROTHY L
E

S
TT

VV
IIEE

WWWW

PP
RRR

EEEE
S

T
O

N

REEM

EL

P
UU

X
C

O

A
S

CCR
G

HILL

YYHH

DOROTHY LIL
E

TERR
RIDGB

A
LLC

TERRA
RIDGB

A
LLC

L

T I26

I2L

T 2

I2
RRR

EE
DD

M
A

COLE

BRR
A

O
AN

M
A

P

COLE

RR
A

HCREEH EES

25
7700

I2
6

CCCCELLO

O

GGGGGIIIILL

P
E

N
NN

YY

NORT

25

II22
6

CCC O

O

GGGILLL

P
E

Y

RTT

UU

NEWW
SSTOCK

MMONT

R
IC

E

GOOLDVVIEW

CLAARKS CHAPEL

P
E

G
G

AYAA ERS

WW
OOOOODDYYYYY

LI
E

WW
E

AVAA
E

R

FAFF R
IIDDA

K
EE

NN
N

E

A
LP

IN
E

PPAAPPP
R

K
E

R

LAC
KEY

Y

V
A

VV
N

N
A

REENRIDGGE

H
AVVAA

E
N

P
IN

E
M

OO
UU

N
T

O
O

DD

HIDDEN FAFF
LLLLS

SS
AA

GG
EE

I

FFFOOXXX CCHAS

N
EEWW

C
O

VEN
AAN

TT

NIN CHOLS HILL

ROBBIN

JJOOO
SS

IE
PLEASANTT HILLLL

LLO
F

TTTT
YY

NNADER TIP
TOON

SC
EN

IICC
VVIIEE

NN
EE

WWW
S

TOO
C

K

W

UU

N

NT

ERSLI
E

N
E

N
E

PAP
R

K
E

R

Y

V
A

V

RE

H
AVVAA

E
N

O
O

D

TI

AS

N
E

N

H

EEW

W

H
AA

MM
BB

U
R

CE MMOORRRR

N
AAA

HH

RR

CCE
RRR

N
N

AAA

HH

ONGGSS CHAPELL
ELLERR

CO

SSTTOONEY KNOOB

BBLLEVINSHH
EE

RR
R

O
N

C
O

V
E

IN
D

IA
N C

O
V

E

LL
OO

WW

SSUM

F
CC

OO
VE

FONTTAATTTT NN

AA
W

R
D

CR
LONGG

CO

S

HH

C
O

LL

UM

F

ANNAA

WW
AA

WWW

CRE

DULA SPRINNGGS

BR

WOOOTEN COV

D
U

LA

HHALL

SSS
UUU

RRRR
EE

E
D

OO
N

R

OV

SSSS
U

E
D

O

14



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION REGARDING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN  

IDENTIFIED GROWTH AREAS 

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2022, Town Council held a workshop regarding growth 
pressures and land use and reached some consensus regarding these topics and 
wishes to formalize some of the matters achieving consensus by adopting a resolution 
which provide some guidance to staff, developers, and the general public; 

WHEREAS, municipal growth through annexation is essential to sound urban 
development and continued economic stability in the Town of Weaverville; and 

WHEREAS, managing growth by extending municipal services makes sense 
and annexation of properties ensures that new development is built to Town of 
Weaverville standards;  

WHEREAS, influencing where and what commercial development occurs 
within the Weaverville area and providing balanced residential development is 
desirable to the Town of Weaverville; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville would like to see growth that is well-
designed and that complements the development that is already within the Town;   

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has identified certain properties along its 
municipal borders as having a high likelihood of development due to the presence of 
public water and sewer and has identified them as growth areas as described below; 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to indicate its willingness to consider the 
voluntary annexation of the properties included within these growth areas and to 
inform the public of the types of development that the Town believes is consistent 
with its Comprehensive Land Use Plan and reasonable when considering the 
surrounding area; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Weaverville Town Council hereby 
declares and resolves as follows: 

1. The Town has identified the following growth areas with maps being attached
hereto:

a. Growth Area 1 – Gill Branch Valley Area
b. Growth Area 2 – Monticello Road West Area
c. Growth Area 3 – Ollie Weaver Road Area
d. Growth Area 4 – I-26 Corridor
e. Growth Area 5 – Reems Creek Road Area

2. The Town is likely to favorably consider voluntary annexation petitions
received for the properties shown within these growth areas. It is noted,
however, that some development, especially in Growth Area 3, may best
proceed without annexation as the provision of municipal services may be
difficult in certain locations and some areas may be ineligible for annexation

15



2

by the Town of Weaverville due to legal requirements regarding satellite 
annexation. 

3. The following is valued, and as proposed development is considered on these
properties, the Town would like to see an emphasis on:

a. Great streets and gathering places, where the pedestrian is prioritized;
b. Connections between adjoining developments and to gathering places;
c. Walkability through the installation of sidewalks, greenways, and other 

multi-modal trails, especially those that will connect to the existing or
planned pedestrian network within Weaverville;

d. Preservation of natural spaces for public use;
e. Establishment of open spaces that provides recreational opportunities

in the form of greenways, playing fields and/or playgrounds;
f. Protection of streams and creeks;
g. Preservation of mature trees and planting of street trees;
h. Landscape buffering and screening to protect views;
i. Reduction of stormwater runoff which threatens our water quality;
j. Energy conservation measures, such as EV charging stations and solar;
k. Inclusion of commercial uses that support compatible development.

4. Consistent with Town Council’s prior discussions and consensus, the following
uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 1 [Gill Branch Valley Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;
e. multifamily development;
f. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-3, R-
12, C-2, and conditional district zoning. 

5. Consistent with Town Council’s prior discussions and consensus, the following
uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 2 [Monticello Road West Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;

16



3 

e. commercial development (especially those supporting residential
neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-3, C-2, and 
conditional district zoning.   

6. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 3 [Ollie Weaver Road Area]:

a. single family residential development;
b. duplexes;
c. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods).

7. These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-3, C-2, and
conditional district zoning. The following uses of land are found to be
compatible with the Town’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its
Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable within Growth Area 4 [I-26
Corridor]:

a. commercial development (especially medical services such as
healthcare facilities and medical offices, small general retail,
restaurants, hotels).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: C-2, and 
conditional district zoning. 

8. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 5 [Reems Creek Road Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;
e. multifamily development;
f. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-3, R-
12, C-2, and conditional district zoning. 

9. The Town is willing to support compatible development within these growth
areas by considering approval of public water requests for such development
if current or anticipated capacity is available and such approval is in the best
interest of the Town and/or its water system.

10. Town Council’s recommended procedure for approvals is for property owners
to present voluntary annexation petitions either prior to or simultaneously

n Growth Area 5 [Reems Creek Road Area]:

p
b. single family residential development;

17



4 

with a water request and zoning request. Some deviations from this 
recommendation are anticipated in situations where a property is ineligible 
for municipal annexation or where provision of municipal services will prove 
difficult. 

11. Nothing herein is binding on the Town of Weaverville and the review and
approval of all annexation petitions, land use applications, and water
extension or commitment requests will be made in Town Council’s discretion
following procedures as required by North Carolina law and local ordinance.

ADOPTED this the 13th day of December, 2022.

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

JAMES ELLER, Town Clerk 

18



Buncombe County

May 5, 2022
0 0.3 0.60.15 mi

1:18,056

11

23



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, August 1, 2023

Subject: Annual Review of Progress towards Accomplishment of Goals 
as Stated in the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP) and 
update of the Action Plan Table with Priorities 

Presenter: Planning Director / Town Attorney

Attachments: Action Plan Table with Priorities

Description:

One year after the latest update of the CLUP staff wishes to conduct a conversation with the 
Planning Board related to the accomplishment of the goals as stated in the CLUP. It is my 
belief that the reprioritization of remaining stated goals will provide valuable guidance on 
the progress toward remaining and new goals of the CLUP moving forward.  

Action Requested:

Staff is requesting that the Planning Board complete the attached action plan table with 
priorities in order to facilitate a conversation during the meeting and an annual update 
of the action plan table with priorities within the CLUP. You will see that the staff scores 
have been provided.

In the Planning Board column, labeled PB, please score the associated goal so staff may 
relay to Town Council the position of the Board based upon an average of the 
aggregated totals. Scores are:

1: High Priority
2: Medium Priority
3: Low Priority

We will discuss additions or subtractions to the stated goals as well. 

24



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PRIORITIES 
(1=high priority, addressed in 12 months; 2=medium priority, addressed in 24 months; 3=lower priority, addressed in 36 months; 0=proposed deletion) 
 Proposed –August/September 2023 

1 

1 2023 2022 TC PB Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff PB TC 
2 PRIORITIZATION RESPONSIBILITY

3 WATER 

4 1 1 Update Plan and regulations to slow land use 
development if water treatment plant expansion 
is postponed or terminated and water usage and 
commitments reach 70% of available water 
supply  

WTP Expansion project 
underway; commitments 
and usage reported 
quarterly 

   

5 1 1 Continue monitoring water production, 
allocations, usage, and availability  

In progress by staff with 
quarterly reports 

 

6 1 1 Continue reserving water allocation for infill 
development within the town 

In progress by staff with 
quarterly reports 

 

7 2 2 Development of Water System GIS Layer Anticipated FY2024 or FY2025  

8 STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

9 1 1 Continue the Street Improvement Program Program funded FY2023   
10 1 2 Consider implementing a Sidewalk Improvement 

Program and Master Plan 
Bike-Ped Plan adopted 
6/26/23; implementation 
being planned  

 

11 2 2 Study possible adoption of driveway construction 
standards – steep slope, reduction of curb cuts, 
common driveways 

   

12 3 3 Implementation of the Bike-Ped Plan Bike-Ped Plan adopted 
6/26/23 

   

13 HOUSING 

14 1 0 Define and consider ways to achieve balanced 
residential development 

Related to TC consensus on 
5/14/22 

 

15 2 2 Consider ways to increase housing affordability TC considered in 2020   
16 2 2 Consider broadening allowable housing types in 

residential districts (duplexes, quadplexes) 
 

17 2 3 Consider expansion of the MH Overlay District   

25



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PRIORITIES 
(1=high priority, addressed in 12 months; 2=medium priority, addressed in 24 months; 3=lower priority, addressed in 36 months; 0=proposed deletion) 
 Proposed –August/September 2023 

2 
 

1 2023 2022 TC PB Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff PB TC 

18  GENERAL POLICY MATTERS 

19  1   2 Review of overlapping land use authority Waiting on County    
20  1   2 Negotiate interlocal agreement(s) with County 

(Building Permits and Inspections) 
Waiting on County    

21  1   1 Review & update economic development goals WEDAC/TC working on this    
22  1   1 Continue to annex properties along the Town’s 

borders in order to impose the Town’s land use 
regulations 

Related to TC consensus on 
5/14/22 and resolution dtd 
12/13/22 

   

23  1   0 Continue to work with Buncombe County during 
its on-going long term planning  

Related to TC consensus on 
5/14/22; Co adopted CLUP 

   

24  1   1 Engage in conversations with NCDOT about long-
term planning for growth 

Related to TC consensus on 
5/14/22 

   

25  1   1 Engage in conversations with MSD about long-
term planning for growth 

Related to TC consensus on 
5/14/22 

   

26  1   1 Comprehensive review of Future Land Use Map Related to TC workshop 
5/14/22  

   

27  1   1 Make decisions on annexation based on the ability 
to provide quality municipal services to proposed 
land uses to the same extent and under current 
policy 

Related to TC consensus on 
5/14/22 and resolution dtd 
12/13/22 

   

28  2   2 Investigate possibility of reestablishing direct bus 
route between Weaverville and Asheville 

    

29  2   3 Investigate possibility of establishing a “Park and 
Ride” in Weaverville to provide a shared ride 
option to Asheville 

Existing lot located on I-26 
near Town limits; available as 
not at usage capacity  

   

30  3   0 Consider reestablishing the Town's 
extraterritorial jurisdiction 

    

31  3   3 Evaluate need to strengthen regulations with 
regard to hazard mitigation 

Buncombe-Madison Hazard 
Mitigation Plan dated 6/21 

   

32  -         

26



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PRIORITIES 
(1=high priority, addressed in 12 months; 2=medium priority, addressed in 24 months; 3=lower priority, addressed in 36 months; 0=proposed deletion) 
 Proposed –August/September 2023 

3 
 

1 2023 2022 TC PB Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff PB TC 

33  LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

34  1   1 Consider regulations that encourage open space 
or greenway dedication, conservation measures 

Planning Board discussion 
5/23, 7/23 

   

35  1   2 Consider Town-initiated rezonings to better align 
established uses with underlying zoning districts 
or to address long dormant properties 

Focusing on long dormant 
properties 

   

36  2   2 Undertake a comprehensive review of zoning 
regulations 

    

37  2   1 Review sign regulations for legal compliance and 
policy objectives 

Legal compliance requires 
amendments 

   

38  2   1 Review hillside/steep slope regulations for legal 
compliance and policy objectives 

    

39  2   2 Determine need or desire for Town grading 
regulations for projects less than between 1 acre 
and ½ acre 

    

40  3   3 Continue to analyze ways to provide standard 
regulations in order to reserve use of conditional 
zoning for unique development 

Areas improved:  
Mixed Use Development 
Apartments 

   

41  3   3 Study mountain ridge protection regulations for 
possible implementation 

    

42  3   2 Revise wireless telecommunication facility 
regulations for legal compliance and policy 
objectives 

    

43  -   1 Study & consider downtown residential district 
with smaller lot size/width 

    

44  -   1 Study & consider regulation of short-term rentals     
45  -   1 Study & consider regulations on min/max parking 

and loading areas 
    

46  -         
47  -         
48  -         

27



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PRIORITIES 
(1=high priority, addressed in 12 months; 2=medium priority, addressed in 24 months; 3=lower priority, addressed in 36 months; 0=proposed deletion) 
 Proposed –August/September 2023 

4 

1 2023 2022 TC PB Staff STATED GOAL NOTES Staff PB TC 

49 PLAN CONSISTENCY REVIEW - LEGALLY REQUIRED 

50 - - - Consult plan priorities if inconsistencies develop 
in the implementation of this Plan 

   

51 - - - Consult the Future Land Use Map and use 
descriptions for Plan consistency review 

Legally required    

52 - - - Consult Action Plan and stated goals for Plan 
consistency review 

Legally required    

53 - - - Consult additional approved plans for Plan 
consistency review 

Legally required    

54 MAINTENANCE OF PLAN AND REGULATIONS – LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

55 - - - Conduct an annual review of progress towards 
accomplishment of Plan goals  

July/August each year    

56 - - - Update appendix to this Plan when new plans 
or amendments are adopted 

To keep Plan up-to-date and 
usable 

 

57 - - - Conduct an annual review of zoning regulations to 
ensure statutory compliance and consistency with 
stated goals 

For legal compliance and 
progress towards Plan goals 

 

58 - - - Undertake annual review of the Table of Uses For legal compliance  
59 - - - Conduct an annual review of subdivision 

regulations to ensure statutory compliance and 
consistency with stated goals 

For legal compliance and 
progress towards Plan goals 

 

60 - - - Consider development of or amendment to 
regulations consistent with law and Plan 

For progress towards Plan 
goals 

   

61 - - - Undertake a comprehensive update to the Plan in 
2025 or at such time as substantial legislative or 
other changes are experienced  

2025 is proposed in order to 
provide for 5 year updates that 
better align w/ Census 

   

28



COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN  
STATED GOALS, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND PRIORITIES 
(1=high priority, addressed in 12 months; 2=medium priority, addressed in 24 months; 3=lower priority, addressed in 36 months; 0=proposed deletion) 
 Proposed –August/September 2023 

5 
 

 COMPLETED 

 1    Investigate interconnection with Asheville for 
supplemental water 

TC resolution adopted 
6/27/22; completed 

   

n/a 1    Negotiate interlocal agreement with Asheville for 
purchase of supplemental water 

Investigated and TC decided 
not to pursue 

   

 1    Develop annexation guidelines that include 
consideration of how quality municipal services 
will be provided 

Resolution adopted 
12/13/2022 

   

 1    Establish Priority List for Sidewalk Installation Sidewalk priority list adopted 
10/24/22 

   

 1    Development of Stormwater System GIS Layer Completed 5/23; LOSRC grant 
funding 

   

 1    Comprehensive review of Table of Uses  PB review 3/23 through 5/23; 
amendments proposed 

   

 1    Review regulations for non-conforming lots Adopted 4/23    
 1    Initiate small area studies for growth areas: Gill 

Branch Valley, Monticello Rd West, Ollie Weaver 
Rd, I-26 Corridor, Reems Creek Rd 

Related to TC workshop 
5/14/22 

   

 1    Consider adoption of land use regulations which 
provide greater control of retail development in 
Main Street area (C-1) 

Adopted 10/24/22    

n/a 0    Study removal of floodplain areas from density 
calculation 

    

n/a 0    Initiate special area studies: Downtown, North 
Main Street-”Five Points” Area, Monticello Road 
corridor, and Reems Creek Road corridor 

Proposed for deletion;  
see line 43 

   

 -    Conduct an annual review of progress towards 
accomplishment of Plan goals 

7/5/22 – PB Review; 7/19/22 
Jt Mtg b/w TC and PB 

   

 -    Update appendix to this Plan when new plans 
or amendments are adopted 

August 2022    

 1    Consider simplification of outdoor lighting 
regulations 

Amendments proposed for 
adoption 7/25/22 

   

 1    Continue the Street Improvement Program Program funded FY2023    

29



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 

Subject: Short-Term Rentals 

Presenter:  Planning Director and Town Attorney 

Attachments: Responses to STR Questionnaire  

Description: 

As per the Board’s request, staff sent out questions related to short term rental regulations 
to certain local jurisdictions and the NC Plan listserv. Responses to the following questions 
were received from Asheville, Black Mountain, Buncombe County, Greensboro, and 
Woodfin.  

• General description of your STR project and status.

• What are/were challenges and how were they resolved?

• What, if anything, would you have done differently?

• Has your ordinance been challenged, legally or otherwise?

• What has worked well and what hasn’t?

• How does enforcement work or what is contemplated for enforcement?

• Anything else you would like to add?

Additionally, Town Council determined that the Planning Board may seek additional 
members on the short term rental working group should you choose to do so. These 
additional members, if any, are at the discretion of the Board and Town Council has 
declined to be the appointing authority. If it is the consensus of the Board, staff intends to 
make contact with the noted stakeholders (WBA, Buncombe County TDA, Police, Public 
Works and Planning staff, and short term rental owners) to determine if they have a 
member or representative who is willing to assist the Planning Board in their deliberations 
on this topic. 

Action Requested: 

Any direction on the next steps of potentially regulating short-term rentals. 

30



 TO:  Ben Woody, AICP, Assistant City Manager 

 FROM:  Chris Collins, AICP, Land Development Division  Manager 

 DATE: Jul 17, 2023

 SUBJECT:  Answers to questions from the Town of Weaverville  regarding 

 short-term rentals. 

 SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 The following are the answers to recently submitted questions about the City’s regulation and 
 enforcement of Short-Term Rentals.  The questions were submitted by staff from the Town of 
 Weaverville. 

 What is the general description of your STR program and status? 

 The City of Asheville allows for whole-dwelling unit short-term rentals in one zoning district 
 (RESORT) and allows homestays in many other districts.  Homestays are a permitted use in an 
 occupied residential dwelling unit and are defined as: 

 Homestay means a lodging use that occurs within a private, resident occupied dwelling unit, and 
 where up to two guest rooms are provided to transients for compensation for periods less than 
 30 days and where the use is subordinate and incidental to the main residential use of the 
 building. A homestay may or may not have a separate kitchen, bathroom and/or entrance. A 
 homestay is considered a "lodging" use under this UDO. 

 What are/were challenges and how were they resolved? 

 The City of Asheville has faced many challenges with regulating and enforcing UDO provisions 
 related to short-term vacation rentals.  In regard to the City’s zoning allowance for Homestays 
 (see above), most substantial challenges were related to defining a “dwelling unit” for the 
 purpose of establishing where a homestay may be operated.  After many iterations, the City 
 landed on the following definitions which provide some clarity to the identification of a dwelling 
 unit: 

 1 

31



 Dwelling unit means one or more rooms physically arranged so as to create an 
 independent housekeeping establishment for occupancy by one family with separate 
 toilets, sleeping rooms, and a kitchen. 

 Staff found that the above definition (in practice) hinged greatly on further defining a 
 “kitchen” as many homestay hosts desired some form of convenience area that might 
 include a counter and refrigerator.  Based on this, the current definition of “Kitchen” in 
 the City’s UDO now reads as follows: 

 Kitchen means an area within a structure that is used or designed to be used for the 
 preparation or cooking of food. 

 This definition allows staff to exercise some judgment regarding a kitchen and has 
 assisted in working through the issues that were present. 

 Regarding entire-dwelling unit occupying Short-Term Rentals, most of the City’s 
 challenges have arisen from enforcement of units that are established in zoning districts 
 where the use is not allowed.  The most prevalent online platforms for advertising and 
 operating these rentals generally obscure location information which makes it difficult for 
 staff to locate and enact enforcement upon illegal units.  The City has attempted to 
 solve this by contracting with a third party service that verifies the physical addresses of 
 properties advertising Short-term rental activity as well.  This has greatly assisted 
 enforcement efforts. 

 What, if anything, would you have done differently? 

 Through the different evolutions of the City’s regulations regarding the short-term rental of 
 property, City staff have learned much and of course would have been best equipped to tackle 
 the obstacles and problems with this knowledge.  While it is certain that some things could have 
 been done differently or different groups engaged at different points in the process, these are 
 points that are hard to quantify.  Staff would be happy to have a further conversation regarding 
 this topic if it would be helpful. 

 2 

32



 Has your ordinance been challenged, legally or otherwise? 

 The City’s UDO provisions regarding short-term rentals were challenged several years ago as 
 part of a lawsuit filed by the City to collect violation fines, and the City’s current zoning 
 regulations were upheld.  No recent legal challenges have been filed. 

 What has worked well and what hasn’t? 

 Homestay permitting is a popular program (with over 600 active permits) allowing residents to 
 utilize a portion of their home to create additional income.  The permitting process has become 
 streamlined over the years and functions well with few complaints to this day. 

 Use of a third-party platform to identify addresses of properties under investigation has worked 
 well.  Trying to use staff resources to do this job without the third-party service did not work well. 

 How does enforcement work or what is contemplated for enforcement? 

 In general, the City’s enforcement of short-term rental uses is driven by complaints received like 
 most other zoning violations within the City.  When a complaint is received, City enforcement 
 staff utilize the City’s permitting database and the third-part STR identification service to 
 determine whether the particular property is operating legally.  If the property is not legally 
 operating,  a notice of violation is sent advising the operator of a 30-day window to bring the 
 property into compliance.  This usually means stopping the use, moving the rental to a 30 day 
 minimum or changing the use in some other way to achieve compliance.  If compliance is not 
 documented within the time provided to cure, staff will issue a citation. 

 3 

33



From: Selena Coffey
To: James Eller
Cc: Jennifer Jackson
Subject: FW: Short Term Rentals
Date: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:34:02 PM
Attachments: image001.png

FYI…. Good response rate so far, although not extremely helpful because it appears that several of us
are in the same position.
 

From: Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org> 
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:32 PM
To: Josh Harrold <josh.harrold@tobm.org>; Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>; Debra
Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>
Cc: Shannon Tuch <stuch@woodfin-nc.gov>
Subject: RE: Short Term Rentals
 
Selena, we are the same place as Black Mountain.
 
Thanks,
 
 

 

Avril M. Pinder
She/Her
County Manager
(828) 250-4101
200 College St., Asheville, NC 28801 
 Respect. Integrity. Collaboration. Honesty. Equity. 
Facebook • Twitter • Instagram • YouTube • Linkedin 

 
 

From: Josh Harrold <josh.harrold@tobm.org> 
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:01 PM
To: Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>; Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>
Cc: Shannon Tuch <stuch@woodfin-nc.gov>; Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Short Term Rentals
 
Selena, 
 
Here’s what we do in BM:

What is the general description of your STR program and status? We don't currently have a
program for STR's. They are allowed without restrictions. 
What are/were challenges and how were they resolved? We are developing a new UDO. In
the UDO, the planning board is requesting to regulate STR's in some form or fashion. Council
has also agreed they would like to see some type of requirements for STR's. 

34

mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org
http://www.buncombecounty.org/
tel:+18282504100
https://www.facebook.com/buncombeGov/
http://twitter.com/buncombegov
https://www.instagram.com/buncombecounty/?hl=en
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCbLf80mjuSlo7UkGmsNqduQ
https://www.linkedin.com/company/buncombe-county-government
mailto:josh.harrold@tobm.org
mailto:scoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov
mailto:stuch@woodfin-nc.gov
mailto:Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org



From: Selena Coffey
To: James Eller
Cc: Jennifer Jackson
Subject: FW: Short Term Rentals
Date: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:05:35 PM

FYI
 

From: Josh Harrold <josh.harrold@tobm.org> 
Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:01 PM
To: Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>; Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>
Cc: Shannon Tuch <stuch@woodfin-nc.gov>; Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: Re: Short Term Rentals
 
Selena, 
 
Here’s what we do in BM:

What is the general description of your STR program and status? We don't currently have a
program for STR's. They are allowed without restrictions. 
What are/were challenges and how were they resolved? We are developing a new UDO. In
the UDO, the planning board is requesting to regulate STR's in some form or fashion. Council
has also agreed they would like to see some type of requirements for STR's. 
What, if anything, would you have done differently? N/A
Has your ordinance been challenged, legally or otherwise? N/A
What has worked well and what hasn’t? N/A
How does enforcement work or what is contemplated for enforcement? This concerns me as
we are a small town and enforcement will be challenging.
Anything else you would like to add? Not at this time. 

Thanks, 
 
 
Josh M. Harrold, ICMA-CM, AICP, CZO
Town Manager
Town of Black Mountain
 
 
Get Outlook for iOS

From: Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 9:20:37 PM
To: Debra Campbell <dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov>
Cc: Josh Harrold <josh.harrold@tobm.org>; Shannon Tuch <stuch@woodfin-nc.gov>; Avril Pinder
<Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: Short Term Rentals

35

mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org
https://aka.ms/o0ukef
mailto:scoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov
mailto:josh.harrold@tobm.org
mailto:stuch@woodfin-nc.gov
mailto:Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org


From: Nelson, Andrew
To: James Eller; jgray@burgawnc.gov
Subject: RE: Short Term Rentals
Date: Friday, July 14, 2023 1:17:15 PM
Attachments: image005.png

You don't often get email from andrew.nelson@greensboro-nc.gov. Learn why this is important

Good afternoon,
 
I’m a (very) junior planner here, but I’m pretty sure our current division manager and the Director
won’t have time to respond, so hopefully this is helpful:
 
We’re in the process of changing the controlling language in our LDO regarding STRs. We have had
to apply the traditional “tourist home” use definition and standards to contemporary STRs, which
has not been great; it requires a special use permit in single-family residential districts, and you can
probably guess how often people proactively go out of their way to get one before listing on
Airbnb…
 
The legacy Tourist Homes (Bed and Breakfast) use:

30-8-10.4 Office, Retail, and Commercial Uses

Q.     Tourist Homes (Bed and Breakfast)
1.       A tourist home may not locate within 400 feet of a rooming house or another tourist home.
2.       No more than 6 guest rooms are allowed.
3.       The owner or operator of the tourist home must reside on site.
4.       Tourist homes are allowed only in buildings originally constructed as dwellings.
5.       Only one kitchen facility is allowed. Meals may be provided only for guests and employees of

the tourist home. Rooms may not be equipped with cooking facilities.
6.       Patrons may not stay in a specific tourist home more than 15 days within a 60-day period.
7.       Signage for tourist homes is limited to one attached sign mounted flat to the front wall of the

building that does not exceed 4 square feet in area and 6 feet in height above ground level. 
Only external illumination is allowed.

 
This is unworkable, however, and our BOA was exasperated with the case load. We’re working on a
text amendment for it - Short Term Rentals | Greensboro, NC (greensboro-nc.gov) – that’s still in
process.
 
The process of updating this has been prolonged and a bit of a rollercoaster. The general feeling was we
were out front and leading public engagement/outreach on the matter, but the hearing and input activity
has still drawn a bit of controversy. Be ready for that, for sure. The existing Tourist Home use has not
been legally challeneged, but that might have been because some local stakeholders expected the
transition into our new STR system. In terms of BOA workload, it has absolutely been challenged. There’s
a strong push from some neighborhoods to have distance boundaries, despite the Wilmington case.
Differentiating between homestay and whole-home rentals also appears to alleviate some concerns.
 
Part of the push for the change has been the extreme difficulty in enforcement. We find out about them in
a mostly complaint-dirven process, and that turns into disgruntled variance/SUP requests. The new STR

36

mailto:Andrew.Nelson@greensboro-nc.gov
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jgray@burgawnc.gov
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/greensboro-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=876
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/greensboro-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=768
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/greensboro-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=513
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/greensboro-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=569
http://online.encodeplus.com/regs/greensboro-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=543
https://www.greensboro-nc.gov/departments/planning/learn-more-about/zoning-rezoning/land-development-ordinance/pending-ldo-amendments/short-term-rentals



proposal we’re likely to implement will include budget to tender an RFP for a service provider to handle
permitting, because the staff workload and BOA casleoad has to go down.
 
Have a good one,
 
-AN
 
Andrew Nelson, MPA, Planner
Planning Department
City of Greensboro
Office: 336-373-7608
300 W. Washington St., Greensboro NC 27401-2624
www.greensboro-nc.gov
Facebook | Twitter | YouTube

 

From: jeller@weavervillenc.org <ncplan@listserv.unc.edu> 
Sent: Friday, 14 July, 2023 11:44
To: NCPlan mailing list <ncplan@listserv.unc.edu>
Subject: [ncplan] Short Term Rentals
 
WARNING: External Email – Don’t get hooked by a phishing email. Never click on links or
open attachments unless you know the content is safe.
 
Serv,
Our Planning Board is working on preparing information for Town Council’s consideration regarding
short-term rentals. They have asked that staff reach out with the following questions. If you have a
few moments to respond to the following it would be greatly appreciated.

·         What is the general description of your STR program and status?

·         What are/were challenges and how were they resolved?

·         What, if anything, would you have done differently?

·         Has your ordinance been challenged, legally or otherwise?

·         What has worked well and what hasn’t?

·         How does enforcement work or what is contemplated for enforcement?

·         Anything else you would like to add?

 
James Eller

37

http://www.greensboro-nc.gov/
http://www.facebook.com/cityofgreensboro
https://twitter.com/greensborocity
http://www.youtube.com/CityofGreensboroNC


From: Selena Coffey
To: James Eller
Cc: Jennifer Jackson
Subject: FW: Short Term Rentals
Date: Monday, July 17, 2023 11:22:11 AM

FYI

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM
Town Manager

Town of Weaverville 
PO Box 338 | 30 S. Main St.
Weaverville, N.C. 28787
Phone: 828.645.7116

All correspondence to and from this email address is subject to public review in accordance
with N.C. public records law.

-------- Original message --------
From: Shannon Tuch <stuch@woodfin-nc.gov>
Date: 7/17/23 9:05 AM (GMT-05:00)
To: Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>, Josh Harrold <josh.harrold@tobm.org>,
dcampbell@ashevillenc.gov, Avril Pinder <Avril.Pinder@buncombecounty.org>
Subject: RE: Short Term Rentals

Hi Selena – please see answers to your questions below:
 

What is the general description of your STR program and status?
The town had formerly adopted standards that did not permit STRs in our low-density
residential districts, but we amended our standards last year to not allow them in any
residential district.  We even considered an amortization schedule to eliminate the existing
ones over time but, ultimately, our Town Council decided to allow the existing ones to
remain and continue to operate as non-conforming units.  In addition to not allowing any
more in any residential district, we also: 1) increased fines, 2) limited the number of STRs any
individual could own to one, and 3) updated definitions so that an STR could have no more
than 3 bedrooms. 
 
The town continues to allow “homestays” where there is a permanent resident on the
property, and they simply rent rooms in their home.  Homestays also require a permit. 
 

What are/were challenges and how were they resolved?
Identifying and tracking the illegal rentals was one of our bigger challenges.  We hired

38

mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


Granicus (formerly Host Compliance) to identify and monitor all the short-term rentals in
town and this has been going well.  The other challenge we have are the folks who had been
running a rental before we changed the rules but, for whatever reason, never followed
through on obtaining a permit.  In these instances, we are not allowing them to obtain a
permit now, even if they had been running it consistently for a couple years.  However, per
the statutes, we do not enforce against homes that can show that they have been operating
continuously for 7 years.   

Another challenge has been documenting all the units that were, or could be,
grandfathered.  We asked anyone operating a unit lawfully before the rules change to obtain
a permit as the easiest way to document, and we add notes to the our permit system
detailing the circumstances.  However, we’ve also had a number of units that would never
have been allowed but for whatever reason, the town didn’t enforce against them.  In these
instances, we don’t issue a permit but instead issued a zoning determination clarifying why
they are allowed to continue. 

Lastly, we continue to struggle with housing supply, especially affordable housing. 
Unfortunately, the town allowed STRs in the zoning districts that contained our older, more
affordable housing stock. So, we’ve lost a lot of those units to STR conversions.   We are
trying to encourage more high-density housing in some of our commercial areas, but are
worried that instead of housing, developers will build STRs.  Limiting an individual owner to
one unit has helped discourage that – and we make it clear for any of our conditional zoning
applications that we won’t support STRs as part of the development, but this can still occur
with smaller applications. 

What, if anything, would you have done differently?
Personally, I would have liked to see the existing units amortized and removed over time;
however, I very much understand why our Council chose not to go that far.  Also, if I had
known that we would abandon the amortization, I might have recommended hiring Granicus
first, and have them identify all the units that could have been permitted before the rules
change, and send everyone a notice giving them a period of time to obtain a permit.  We did
offer a window of time to obtain a permit but, at the time, we didn’t know who was
operating units so notice was provided just through public meetings, social media, email
announcements, website postings, etc. but some folks fell through the cracks and didn’t
know they had to get a permit.     

Has your ordinance been challenged, legally or otherwise?
We’ve received a number of desperate/frustrated/upset calls from STR owners who “didn’t
know the rules” or “were told they didn’t need a permit” or “bought the house to be able to
run an Airbnb”, etc.  Those conversations are not fun, but we’ve not had any legal
challenges.  We are careful to talk with folks and get as much information as we can and, if
there’s a way to grandfather them, we do (provided they can supply appropriate
documentation).  We have also met with one attorney whose client owns multiple units
already and wants to expand into a commercial district, but because he already owns
several, we’ve told him he cannot own any more (although he can sell them to other people

39



to operate STRs) – he didn’t like that alleging that we were regulating ownership, but we’ve
not been formally challenged.    
 

What has worked well and what hasn’t?
It’s all working well.  Identifying the units is tricky but Granicus makes this extremely easy.  
There would be a bit of a learning curve with a system like this, but it is pretty user friendly. 
All our Planning staff (including me) had experience with this or similar systems in Asheville,
so it was pretty seamless for us.    
 
Despite the new rules, neighbors experiencing nuisance issues are still not happy.  We have
a three-strikes rule that would allow us to revoke a permit for a year if we can document
multiple violations, but that’s not been easy to document.   
 

How does enforcement work or what is contemplated for enforcement?
Our Town Planner handles most of the enforcement.  She reviews the Granicus database on
a regular basis and when she finds an unpermitted STR, especially one that has a short
history of renting, she will send a Notice of Zoning Violation.  All our NOVs allow 30 days to
resolve the issue – and how it gets resolved will depend on the property and owner.  In some
instances, they just need to apply for a permit; but the most common remedy is to stop the
short-term renting (these often convert to 30-day rentals or homestays).  If there is no
response, or if the matter is not resolved within 30 days, we issue a Citation that will include
a fine of $100/day for every day they continue to rent.  If we catch them again, we move
immediately into a citation that escalates ($300, then $500) for each subsequent violation. 
   
 

Anything else you would like to add?
We also held several public meetings (one community forum, and 3 public hearings) before
adopting the rules.  There are good arguments on both sides of the issue but for us, it came
down to prioritizing housing and preserving the character/harmony of our neighborhoods. 
There is still plenty of property that could allow STRs if an investor is really motivated, so we
try to steer people to those areas when possible.  We also recognize anything over 30 days
as a long-term rental, and that has worked for some folks in addition to converting an STR to
a homestay.  These rule changes have primarily impacted investors, or people with enough
security to afford more than one home and, while we don’t want to interfere with free-
enterprise, we’re not as concerned about those folks who most often do not live in
Woodfin.    
 
For better or worse, I have a fair amount of experience with STRs so if I can help in any other
way, please feel free to reach out. 
 
Regards,
 
Shannon

 
 

40



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, August 1, 2023 

Subject: Other Business 

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: None 

Description:   Joint Meeting of Town Council and the Planning Board 

At this time Town Council is anticipating a joint meeting with the Planning Board in 
September. 

Action Requested: 

None at this time. Once the meeting is set by Council, staff will request the Planning 
Board to set a special called meeting for the  date, time and location of choice.  

41


	August 1, 2023 Planning Board Agenda
	Minutes
	Minutes.pdf
	Planning Board draft minutes7.6.23 - with jj revisions.pdf

	Maple Trace Initial Zoning
	CLUP Update
	Short Term Rentals
	Short Term Rentals.pdf
	Asheville.pdf
	Buncombe County.pdf
	Black Mountain.pdf
	Greensboro.pdf
	Woodfin.pdf

	Other Business



